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RFP No. 900977, Addendum No. 2

Alameda County Fire Department
QUESTIONS & ANSWERS
to

RFP No. 901600
for

Emergency Ambulance Service Provider for Alameda County Fire Department
Summary of Q&A Submitted

Networking/Bidders Conferences held on May 9, 2018
	This General Services Agency (GSA), Questions & Answers (Q&A) Document has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail.  E-mail addresses used are those in the County’s Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Vendor Database or from other sources.  If you have registered or are certified as a SLEB, please ensure that the complete and accurate e-mail address is noted and kept updated in the SLEB Vendor Database.  This Q&A Document will also be posted on the GSA Contracting Opportunities website located at http://www.acgov.org/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/ContractOpportunities.jsp.


Alameda County is committed to reducing environmental impacts across our entire supply chain. 

If printing this document, please print only what you need, print double-sided, and use recycled-content paper.

Responses to Questions

Q1) Page 4 of RFP, Section B (SCOPE/BACKGROUND), the first paragraph states: 

As part of the innovative approach to responding to the EMS RFP, ACFD intends to be the principle manager of the service including handling all dispatch calls, the direct billing and provide some of the comfort stations as defined in the EMS RFP.

What guarantees is ACFD and/or the County of Alameda making regarding payment for services, should the ACFD fail to collect adequate revenue to cover ambulance service costs associated with performance of both the EMS RFP and this ACFD RFP?
A1) The obligation will be set forth between ACFD and the Contractor and is subject to negotiations.
Q2) Page 5 of the RFP, Section B (SCOPE/BACKGROUND), the sixth paragraph states:

Upon receipt of a Notice of Intent to Award, the successful bidder shall immediately sign a Non- Disclosure Agreement (“NDA”), as well as a Joint Proposal Agreement for the formal submission of the EMS RFP.
Can GSA and/or ACFD provide copies of these proposed agreements? 

A2) Yes. Copies of the proposed template agreements will be made available to bidders.  
Q3) Page 13 of RFP, Section E (REQUIREMENTS), Item 13.a. states:

Penalties will be assessed for failures to achieve minimum standards set forth in the Contract. This procurement requires the highest levels of performance and reliability, and the mere demonstration of effort, even diligent and well intentioned effort, shall not substitute for performance results.

Are these additional fines set by ACFD? If yes, is there a defined fine structure?

A3) The ACFD does not intend to impose additional fines. However, ACFD reserves the right to charge contractor for costs associated with addressing the fines attributed to the contractor’s non-performance. 
Q4) Page 9 of the RFP, Section E (REQUIREMENTS), Item 7. a. and b. state:

a.
Contractor’s failure to provide ambulances as required in the contract may result in a deduction from the fees for service paid or a charge of penalty fees to the Contractor.

b.
Exceptions to Response Time standards may be granted for requests during a disaster, locally or in a neighboring jurisdiction that a Contractor’s ambulance is dispatched too.  ACFD may also grant an exception for other good cause.  The final determination on an exception shall the sole discretion of ACFD.  Exceptions allowed by County EMS are subject to approval by ACFD.

What is the referenced penalty structure imposed by ACFD and the associated fines? Are referenced penalties in addition to the EMS agency liquidated damage structure defined in the EMS RFP? Is the successful bidder intended to pay fines to both ACFD and EMS, or will ACFD pay any County fines assessed?

A4) ACFD will pay for fines attributed to its failures, and the Contractor will pay fines associated with its failure to perform.  ACFD reserves the right to charge contractor for costs associated with addressing the fines attributed to the contractor’s non-performance.

Q5) Page 9 of RFP, Section E (REQUIREMENTS), Item 8(c) states:

Each ambulance must permanently display the name of or other suitable identification or logo on the outside of the vehicle in compliance with state and local policies.
Can ACFD identify the desired format for vehicle identification to assist the bidder in quantifying the anticipated cost?  Do the logos on the vehicles need to closely identify with the livery of ACFD?

A5) The ACFD intends to work with their contractor to jointly develop a color scheme and design that represents the partnership. The design is ultimately subject to County EMS approval.

Q6) Page 12 of RFP, Section E (REQUIREMENTS), Item 10(p) states:

The BLS ambulances responding to 911 calls shall comply with all requirements of the Alameda County Ambulance Ordinance and comply with all Alameda County EMS Agency Policies and Procedures. BLS ambulances responding to 911 calls will have an AED and operate at the full advanced scope of EMT-Basic in California.
However, page 13 of RFP, E (REQUIREMENTS), Item 13.a.(2) states:

Every ambulance unit must at all times be equipped and staffed to operate at the paramedic level, on all emergency and non-emergency calls received under the contract.

These two statements are inconsistent with each other, can ACFD clarify?
A6) The statement on page 13, E (REQUIREMENTS), Item 13.a.(2), has been revised in Addendum No. 1 as follows:

Every ALS ambulance unit must at all times be equipped and staffed to operate at the paramedic level, on all emergency and non-emergency calls received under the contract.

Q7) Page 13 of the RFP, Section E (REQUIREMENTS), Item 13.a.(2) states:

Every ambulance unit must at all times be equipped and staffed to operate at the paramedic level, on all emergency and non-emergency calls received under the contract.

The EMS RFP allows for BLS response to Priority 4 calls. Does this conflicting ACFD RFP requirement supersede the EMS RFP, which allows for BLS response to Priority 4 calls?

A7) No, this requirement is intended to align with the EMS RFP. 

Q8) Page 14 of RFP, Section E (REQUIREMENTS), Item 13.a.(7) states:
This is not a level-of-effort contract. A Bidder who fails to perform may be promptly replaced. In accepting a Bidder’s offer, ACFD accepts the Bidder’s promise to employ whatever level-of-effort is necessary to achieve the clinical, response time, and other performance standards required by the terms of the agreement.

Can ACFD identify the provisions for curing any performance related issues?
A8) For most performance related issues, Contractor will be provided notice and an opportunity to cure. 
Q9) Page 15 of RFP, Section F (ACCOUNT MANAGER), Item 2 states:
Contractor shall also provide adequate, competent support staff that shall provide administrative service ACFD during normal working hours, Monday through Friday.  Such representative(s) shall be knowledgeable about the contract, products offered and able to identify and resolve quickly any issues including but not limited to order and invoicing problems.

For budget planning purposes, can ACFD provide a list of all non-field staff that ACFD envisions Contractor will employ related to this section F.2 or elsewhere (i.e., SSM Supervisors, EMS Supervisors, Operations Supervisors, Key 5, Support staff, etc.)?
A9) As stated on page 4-5 of the RFP, Section B (SCOPE/BACKGROUND), the second paragraph:

ACFD intends to provide the following dedicated personnel (titles are for demonstrative purposes only) unless the Contractor can demonstrate its ability to provide some of these positions at a greater value to the EMS System in Alameda County.  While all services will be substantively integrated, the ACFD plans to assume responsibility for communication, oversight and control.

· Account Manager/Operations Director to oversee and be responsible for the overall functioning of emergency ambulance service.

· Finance Manager to oversee the financial performance of the ambulance operations.

· Health, Safety, Risk Management Specialist to be responsible for the development and maintenance of a comprehensive health, safety, and risk management programs.

· Medical Director to oversee the Contractor’s clinical performance and be responsible for the facilitating the procurement and oversight of pharmaceuticals used in delivering service including controlled substances.

· Quality Improvement & Education Coordinator to be responsible for the medical quality assurance evaluation of all services provided pursuant to EMS RFP.

Q10) Page 15 of the RFP, Section G (CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS), Item 5 states: 
Contractor shall provide and pay for all administration, insurance, professional expertise, labor, materials, vehicles, and equipment (including repair and maintenance) necessary to respond to all calls referred to the Contractor.
Can ACFD delineate what services it intends to provide under the resulting Agreement with the provider (i.e., contract oversight, billing, dispatch services, field oversight) and delineate the associated costs for these services?

A10) No, ACFD will not delineate the cost associated with the services they’ll be providing and will not further delineate the services it intends to provide under the resulting Agreement.

Q11) Page 15 of RFP, Section G (CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS), Item 5 states:
Contractor shall provide and pay for all administration, insurance, professional expertise, labor, materials, vehicles, and equipment (including repair and maintenance) necessary to respond to all calls referred to the Contractor.

Can ACFD clarify if this relates to calls within the defined service area only?
A11) The majority of calls will be within the service area; however, Contractor shall also respond to calls pursuant to State, Federal and County automatic aid and mutual aid agreements. 
Q12) Page 15 of RFP, Section G (CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS), Item 7 states:
Contractor shall make emergency and non-emergency services (as defined in this RFP) available to all persons within the Service Area.

The emergency and non-emergency terms are not defined in the RFP, so can be assumed that all request are 911/emergency in nature whether or not lights and sirens are used in the response. Can ACFD please define the terms?
A12) Pursuant to the EMS RFP (page 6-9 definitions), ACFD intends to provide 911 Emergency Ground Ambulance Service which includes Emergency Ambulance Service, 911 Response, ALS Transport, and Standby Service with Transportation Authorization.  911 Ambulance Service does not include 7 digit medical transports, inter-facility transports, or Critical Care Transports. 
Q13) Page 16 of RFP, Section G (CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS), Item 11 states:
Contractor further agrees to participate in drills, training, activities, public education, etc. as directed by ACFD. The Contractor further agrees that for all activities, for which the Contractor has initiated participation such as stand-by services, public education events, job fairs, etc., the Contractor shall notify ACFD of the details and location of the activities. Participation in such activities shall not impact or reduce the number of units available in the system without prior written approval of the ACFD.
 For budgeting purposes can bidders quantify the expected volume of these activities?
A13) Contractor will participate in all activities required by County EMS, as contained the EMS RFP. For events ACFD requires, Contractor may submit an invoice to be compensated for reasonable hours performed. 

Q14) Page 16 of the RFP, Section H (OTHER REQUIREMENTS) Item 1 states:

CONTRACTOR DEFAULT:  The District, reserves the right, in case of Contractor default, to procure the Services, in part or in their entirety, from other sources and hold the defaulting Contractor responsible for any excess costs occasioned thereby.
As the provider is requested to assume full liability under two related but separate County agreements, issued by two different County agencies, can the County clarify which County agency will hold the ultimate authority to enforce contractual compliance requirements, determine matters of default, etc., under the EMS RFP and collect any associated liquidated damages, etc.?

A14) The County and ACFD are separate entities; there will not be two “County agreements, issued by two different County agencies”.  This Q&A is provided on behalf of ACFD, not the County. The EMS RFP and the ACFD RFP are completely separate RFPs.  If ACFD is the successful bidder to the EMS RFP, the contract will between ACFD and the County, with the County holding the authority to enforce contractual compliance obligations. The contract with the successful bidder in the ACFD RFP, will be between the Contractor and ACFD, with ACFD holding the authority to enforce contractual compliance obligations.  
Q15) Page 18 of RFP, Section I (PERFORMANCE SECURITY BOND), Item 1 states:
Contractor shall furnish a performance bond issued by a bonding company appropriately licensed or irrevocable letter of credit acceptable to ACFD in the amount of 15 million dollars for each year the contract is in effect.  ACFD reserves the right to reduce or increase bonding requirements.  The Contractor shall pay all cost associated with bonding.
Is the referenced $15 million performance bond in addition to the performance bond required by the associated and concurrently issued EMS RFP? Under the envisioned contract resulting from the ACFD RFP, which party would pay for/provide the County bond requirement associated with the concurrently issued and related EMS RFP? What does ACFD consider acceptable as a letter of credit? If the bond referenced in this ACFD RFP is separate from that required in the concurrently issued EMS RFP, can ACFD provide the rationale for an additional bond requirement?

A15) This bond requirement is not separate. Contractor can either obtain their own performance bond or cooperate with ACFD on a bond. The Contractor will be responsible for the cost associated with their bonding. The specifics will be negotiated in the contract.

Q16) Page 18 of RFP, Section J (DELIVERABLES / REPORTS), Item 4 states:
Contractor is required to provide electronic patient care record data, in a form and timeframe prescribed by the EMS Agency, pursuant to California Health and Safety Code section 1797.227 and approved by EMS Medical Director, for patient documentation on all EMS system responses including patient contacts, cancelled calls, and non-transports. Contractor will be required to provide the software and CAD interface for the First Responder Agencies at no cost to agencies. 

Can ACFD confirm if the expectation is with First Responder CADS or just CAD services provided by the Alameda County Regional Emergency Communications Center (ACRECC)?
A16) Contractor shall provide software licenses to all First Responder Advanced Life Support agencies. The number of licenses that will be necessary may be dependent on the ePCR platform proposed by the Contractor and approved by County EMS.  The CAD interface is limited to the approved County EMS emergency medical dispatch (EMD) centers, currently ACFD and Oakland Fire Department.
Q17) Page 24 of RFP, Section M (EVALUATION CRITERIA / SELECTION COMMITTEE), the third paragraph states:
All contact during the evaluation phase shall be through the GSA-Procurement department only.  Bidders shall neither contact or lobby evaluators or ACFD personnel during the evaluation process.  Attempts by Bidder to contact and/or influence members of the SC may result in disqualification of Bidder.
The EMS EDP (Section Y Dispatch and Communications Systems) requires bidders to submit Draft Agreements and Letters of Intent with agencies that may involve ACFD or other personnel under ACFD’s command (i.e., ACRECC). For example: Contractor is required to submit with its bid a letter of commitment to provide service from the selected [EMD] center, as well as the corresponding agreement to be executed by the parties thereto.

Can GSA provide clarification on how potential bidders can meet the requirements of either or both concurrent RFPs without violating the no-contact requirements with ACFD personnel? 
A17) ACFD will respond to all requests and provide documents that are required by the EMS RFP; a separate contact person has been identified for this purpose. Bidders will not be penalized for reaching out to the designated ACFD-ACRECC contact personnel so that they can apply to the EMS RFP if not the successful bidder in this ACFD RFP. The contacts for the EMS RFP are:

· Primary Contact: Rosa Ramos 

Dispatch Manager 

Alameda County Fire Department - Alameda County Regional Emergency Communications Center
Office: 925-423-1803

Mobile: 925-918-1803

Email: Rosa.Ramos@acgov.org 

· Alternate Contact: Alan Evans

Division Chief, Support Services 

Alameda County Fire Department

Mobile:  510-693-3405

Office: 925-833-3473

Email: Alan.evans@acgov.org
Q18) Page 33 of RFP, Section R (PRICING), Item 3 states:
Unless otherwise stated, Bidder agrees that, in the event of a price decline, the benefit of such lower price shall be extended to ACFD.

Can ACFD identify the triggers and thresholds that would cue a price decline discussion? 
A18) This requirement has been revised in Addendum No. 1.   

Q19) Page 34 of RFP, Section S (AWARD), Item 4 states:
ACFD reserves the right to award to a single or multiple Contractors.

Can ACFD please clarify if the intention is to ‘parcel’ out area or service to more than one contractor?
A19) ACFD intends to award a contract to one vendor. 
Q20) Will the contracting agency be the Alameda County Fire Department or a Joint Powers Authority organization?
A20) The contracting agency will be the Alameda County Fire Department, which is a special district formed pursuant to the Fire Protection District Law of 1987.
Q21) When ACFD selects their preferred partner as a part of this bid, they will have the advantage of knowing about the strengths and strategy of any other bidder. How can Alameda County ensure a fair process for an independent bidder who did not prevail in the ACFD procurement for an alliance partner?
A21) ACFD’s process has been set up to address this issue and maintain the integrity of both procurement processes.  The EMS RFP is being conducted by Health Care Services Agency, Emergency Medical Services and not GSA. For the AFCD procurement process, GSA will accept all bids then interact directly with the Selection Committee through the scoring phases.  All members of the Selection Committee are subject matter experts from outside agencies, not ACFD.  The Selection Committee members will not participate in the development of ACFD’s proposal for the EMS RFP.  Proposals received in response to this RFP will be kept confidential until a contract is finalized with the successful bidder, which is anticipated to be after the award notification in the EMS RFP.  Proposals submitted for this RFP will not be disclosed to the individuals working on ACFD’s response to the EMS RFP, with the exception of the successful bidder’s proposal.  
Q22) Does participation by a bidder in the ACFD RFP preclude the same bidder’s participation in EMS RFP? If so, can GSA and/or ACFD explain any and all limitations or restrictions?
A22) As stated on page 5 of the RFP, Section B (SCOPE/BACKGROUND), 
ACFD intends to enter into an agreement with the successful bidder to the ACFD RFP to serve as ACFD’s subcontractor in providing the ambulance service sought by the County in its EMS RFP.  The successful bidder will be required, as part of that agreement with ACFD, to assume liability fulfilling the ambulance service performance requirements of an agreement between ACFD and the County should ACFD be selected for award under the County’s EMS RFP. The service performance requirements will be based in part on the successful bidder’s proposal.

Upon receipt of a Notice of Intent to Award, the successful bidder shall immediately sign a Non- Disclosure Agreement (“NDA”), as well as a Joint Proposal Agreement for the formal submission of the EMS RFP.
The Joint Proposal Agreement will include the parties’ agreement to bid on the EMS RFP via the joint proposal only.

Q23) Page 29 of the RFP, Section M (EVALUATION CRITERIA / SELECTION COMMITTEE), in the Evaluation Criteria Chart, Item I – Cost, the Numbers 1-3 are missing. Is this a simple typo, or are there 1-3?

A23) This item has a typo in number sequence, there are no missing items 1-3. 

Q24) Who comprises the ACFD Board of Directors?

A24) ACFD Board of Directors is comprised of the Alameda County Board of Supervisors. 
1401 Lakeside Drive, Suite 907 ( Oakland, CA 94612
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